AGENDA Kx
SAFER PLYMOUTH

PARTNERSHIP SAFER
PLYMOUTH

W community where peaple feel safe and secure

Date: 4 November 2017
Time: 10.30am — | pm
Place: Warspite Room, Council House, Plymouth

Item Subject

I Welcome and Introductions

To welcome/introduce members of the Partnership, and note apologies received.

2, Minutes of the last Meeting (Pages | - 4)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2017

3.6 Monthly Budget Update (Pages 5 - 26)

4,Update on Ownership of Themes
For Safer Plymouth to discuss Theme Leads.

5.Delivery Plan Update (Pages 27 - 30)
For Safer Plymouth to discuss the draft Delivery Plans.

6. Theme Lead Update

7.Healthy Relationship Update (Pages 31 - 38)

8.Concern for Welfare Plans (Pages 39 - 40)




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 2

L d
SAFER PLYMOUTH Kx
PARTNERSHIP SAFER

Draft Minutes from Meeting held on Tuesday 25 July 2017 PLYMOUTH

1 community where people feel safe and secure

Present:

Chief Superintendent Dave Thorne, Devon and Cornwall Police (Chair)

Matt Garrett, Head of Community Connections, PCC

Councillor Dave Downie, Cabinet Member for Safer and Stronger Communities
Jackie Kings, Community Connections Strategic Manager, PCC

Laura Griffiths, Commissioning Officer, PCC

Laura Juett, Public Health Specialist, PCC

Candice Sainsbury, Policy & Intelligence Manager, PCC

Lyn Gooding, Partnership and Commissioning Officer, OPCC

Jo Robison, Criminal Justice, Partnerships and Commissioning Manager, OPCC
Sarah Allum, NSPCC

Lynn Young, Democratic Support Officer, PCC

Rachel Bentley, Devon and Cornwall Police

Craig McWhinnie, Devon and Cornwall Police

Steve Brown, Devon and Cornwall Police

Claire Oldfield, Plymouth University

Velu Balasubramanian, UPSU

Heather Welch, Victim Support

Paul Jamieson, Victim Support

Jackie Clift, Plymouth VCSE

Apologies: | | Mel Joyner, Plymouth University

The meeting started at 10.03 am and finished at 12.30 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the partnership will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes so
they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether
these minutes have been amended.

Welcome and apologies

The Chair welcomed all parties and asked everyone to introduce themselves.
Apologies were noted as above.

Minutes of the last meeting

Agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2017.

Action points —

Minute 24 — actioned and document re-circulated.

Minute 27 — actioned. Laura Griffiths will share the report from last year. There
were some small amendments made due to changes in local funding. There are
some discussions being held around Prevent.

Minute 28 — meeting took place the week before last for most leaders of sub
groups — this discussion will continue today.

Safer Plymouth Partnership Board Tuesday 25 July 2017




Page 2

Minute 29 — this is part of today’s agenda.

Final Terms of Reference

Matt Garrett (Head of Community Connections, PCC) advised members that the
Safer Plymouth Terms of Reference had been updated, incorporating the suggested
amendments at the previous meeting.

Agreed the Safer Plymouth Terms of Reference.

Theme Leads discussion

Matt Garrett (Head of Community Connections, PCC) led a discussion on Theme
Leads (re-named from Sub Group Chairs). Theme Leads, together with individuals
relevant to the subject can decide if they want to hold a meeting and what action
they wish to take. Members were advised that discussions need to take place to
determine if these are the correct themes.

The Theme Leads are as below —

e Alcohol Harm — Rachel Bentley (Devon and Cornwall Police)

e Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence — Craig McWhinnie (Devon and
Cornwall Police)

e One Plymouth (Welcoming City) — Candice Sainsbury (Plymouth City

Council)

Chile Sexual Exploitation (CSE) — Sarah Allum (NSPCC)

Prevent — Candice Sainsbury (Plymouth City Council)

Modern Slavery - Simon Hardwick (Devon and Cornwall Police)

Cyber Crime and Fraud — no Chair yet (possibly Rachael Hind, Licensing

Service Manager — however she has not yet been approached)

Rachel Bentley, Craig McWhinnie, Candice Sainsbury and Sarah Allum provided
members with updates on their particular areas

Members were reminded of the importance of looking at the community and
voluntary sector to see what they are able to offer in addition to the commissioned
services, and to ensure that the services on offer are co-ordinated.

Draft Delivery Plans

Members were advised that the focal points for the plans are -

e victims/offenders
® communities
e issues

There are currently 12 themes (not all have been covered in this meeting). The
OCLPs need to be viewed when they are available. In addition, Safer Plymouth

need to decide what their focus is, and decide whether to group some of these

areas together or to identify new theme leads.

Action point - Dave Thorne and Matt Garrett to meet with theme leads before

Safer Plymouth Partnership Board Tuesday 25 July 2017




Page 3

the next meeting to identify what the priorities are.

SARC feedback discussion

Members were advised that the contracts for the existing SARCs are coming to an
end and arrangements were being made to buy new services.

The proposal is for adult SARCs to be located in Swindon, Gloucester, Bristol,
Exeter and Truro. It is also proposed that there will be an adult SARC in
Plymouth, which would operate as an acute response facility, opened up when
needed, but not permanently staffed.

In relation to paediatric care, it is proposed that there are two centres of
excellence in Exeter and Bristol, which would offer child sexual abuse care and
expertise to children and young people across the South West.

This would be broadly the same as the current provision, but with the addition of a

second paediatric service for Avon and Somerset, Gloucestershire, Swindon and
Wiltshire.

Under the new proposals, SARCs would offer quality healthcare and forensic
services on a single visit, following sexual assault. People can either refer
themselves or be referred by another service or the police.

Lyn Gooding (Partnership and Commissioning Officer, OPCC) provided further
details of SARCs and how they are funded, the main points being —

e the main change that has been proposed is the acute provision;

e the recruitment of paediatricians is an issue as some doctors are
uncomfortable when they get involved with crime/court;

e alow number of children were seen at the Plymouth SARC (four last
quarter), a child could be seen in hospital — not just at the SARC;

e originally Plymouth was not an option for SARC provision;

o self-referral is difficult to the SARC in Plymouth as it is located within a
gated community and access is difficult;

e the Plymouth facility will be located within a medical facility, with the
preferred provider deciding on the location and will commence on |
October 2018;

o there were 61 referrals to Plymouth SARC last year; these referral rates
have been cause for concern for that past 18 months.

The issue was discussed at length, with members expressing concern at the

proposals, the data used, the brevity of the engagement process, and the lack of an
EIA.

The Chair advised members that the engagement finishes on 28 July and stressed
the importance of ensuring that the views of Safer Plymouth are heard.

Action point - Laura Griffiths, Dave Thorne, Steve Brown and Craig McWhinnie
to meet to put forward a Safer Plymouth response to the proposed changes to the

Safer Plymouth Partnership Board Tuesday 25 July 2017




Page 4

SARC provision.

AOB

There were no other items of business.

Safer Plymouth Partnership Board Tuesday 25 July 2017




Page 5 gt

8 PO

Office of the Police and
o Crime Commissioner
S Devon and Cornwall

HALF YEAR REPORT RETURN - COMMUNITY SAFETY FUND 2017-18

Please return completed and signed return by Friday 3 November 2017. Please remember to
submit your invoice with your return.

Name of area and partnership

e.g. CSP/YOT

Safer Plymouth

Half year end date (Month/Year)

October 2017

Total Community Safety Fund £400,568
Allocation £
Amount Claimed for £200,284

(First/Second) half year £

Projects/activities being funded. Please indicate the status of the provider i.e.
statutory/vollindependent and where appropriate, through which commissioning body it
receives its funding e.g. YOT

(Project A)

Plymouth Domestic abuse Service

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of
funding

£160,200 which provides approx. 1/3 of the total service funding (this
includes £27,678 carried forward 16/17 grant for additional IDVA and
MARAC co-ordinator). The remainder of the service comes from the
Local Authority core budget. An additional £5,000 has been invested in
further workforce development of DASH training

Delivered by Sanctuary Housing Association which is a charity

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

£80,100
Provision of a refuge, dispersed units, support, IDVA and MARAC
services, DASH training

Intended Outcomes

Outcomes focus on improving the safety of victims and their families and
encouraging them to engage with services and ideally move on from an
abusive relationship, examples include:

»  |00% of victims engaging with the service are supported to minimise
risk to their selves and others, as well as achieving other positive
outcomes.

75% or above victims referred to the service engage with the service
Re-referral rate is below 20%

Staff trained are satisfied

a
B
a
=  90% of victims exiting the service do so in a planned way

How are these
measured?

The Plymouth Domestic Abuse Service contract receives ongoing
contract monitoring including quarterly performance returns and review
meetings.

To what extent have
these been achieved?

Outcomes for the service clients continues to remain high with reports
of achieving 100% positive outcomes.

1|Page




Page 6 . Pcc

#EHE T Office of the Police and
i Crime Commissioner
E Devon and Cornwall

b3

osit

There was a smooth continuation of the MARAC co-ordinator function.
In excess of 100 people have received DASH training in the first quarter
therefore additional investment has been secured.

Referrals levels remain high and some additional work has been carried
out in partnership with the new Community Connections Team to
resolve move on housing issues. This is creating additional capacity not
just within this service but within the wider housing system.

The uptake of the sanctuary scheme has not happened to date. This is
not a reflection on the service providers but due to a number of staff
changes within the Police delaying the changes required to the referral
pathways for this scheme.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes?

Additional funding for the MARAC coordinator post to be reviewed with
the wider system

Rag Rating (\/ ) as
appropriate

eve

[ On Track to cieve '

~Or

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

(Project B)

Therapeutic Counselling for victims of sexual violence

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of
funding

£25,000 this 1/3 of the total service with an additional £25,000 from
NHSE and a further £25,000 from OPCC (£75,000 total)
Delivered by First Light a registered charity

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

£37,500
Full cost recovery spreadsheet is available on request and is shared with
the peninsula SARC Board

Intended Outcomes

The overall outcome is to ensure that we support victims of sexual
violence with access to therapeutic counselling services and that services
users are better able to cope with the experience they have had and
recover from it.

How are these
measured?

The current contract with First Light (previously Twelves Company) is

subject to ongoing Yaly contract review meetings. A range of

performance indicators are monitored on a quarterly basis which

incorporate:

* Positive responses by service users to a Cope and Recover
questionnaire,

* National SARC data indicators for counselling service user wait times.

In additional, we have a local SARC Board and a Peninsula SARC Broad

that provide ongoing Governance, support and quality assurance.

To what extent have
these been achieved?

Overall outcomes and experiences for clients remain good. However, it
should be noted that some lack of capacity has meant that volumes are
not as high as expected (185 actual appointments Vs a planned 274
appointments — only 68% of the target) but outcomes are positive and

2|Page




Page 7 ;: | Pcc

Office of the Police and

fiast
{4 . . .
R R Crime Commissioner
o K Devon and Cornwall
.

illustrates good progress for clients.
The following illustrates the overall progress and distance travelled made
by clients in the first quarter which remains positive:

== Assessment -I—Fession il === Sassion 6 === Final Session
am able to cope

with everyday life
i am able to manage | am positive about

my emotions my future

I am able to cope | am in control of my
with stress life
| have confidence in | live a healthy
myself lifestyle
I am able to achieve
| value myself 7 7
7 my goals
lhaveag am able to live an

support network
I am happy in my

relationships

independent...

In the first quarter we have also seen a high level of cancellations and
DNA (41 in total) — this will be picked up by the wider Plymouth SARC
Board.

Full contract return is available on request.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes?

Recruitment has taken place and First Light enters the 2™ quarter with
no vacancies.

Slight delay in receiving 2" quarter data due to service requiring to focus
on the current regional reprocurement of SARCs.

The Plymouth and Peninsula SARC Board continue to provide oversight
and Governance to ensure issues are supported to be resolved.

Rag Rating (‘/) as
appropriate

.

On Track to Achieve

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

(Project C)

The Harbour Centre — providing a community based drugs and alcohol
treatment — the criminal justice team

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of
funding

£98,500 this provides approx. 1/10 of the total service budget
The Harbour Centre is a registered Charity

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

Part of a commissioned service, a full cost recovery available on request

3|Page




Page 8 e Pcc

#i"  Office of the Police and
gidsasess agiiss Crime Commissioner
’ Devon and Cornwall

73
33
22

208
sey

-3l

Intended Outcomes

Ensure access to an alcohol and substance misuse programme that will
ensure those at risk of committing crime or being a victim of crime are
supported with appropriate treatment.

How are these
measured?

As a commissioned service we carry out contract review meetings,
monitor performance |/4ly and utilise the National Diagnostic Outcomes
Monitoring Executive Summary (DOMES) report:

* Proportion of the treatment population in contact with the criminal
justice system compared to national average broken down by Opiate;
non-opiate; alcohol; alcoho!l and non-opiate

»  Successful completions as a proportion of Criminal Justice clients of
all in treatment compared to national average

* Proportion of Criminal Justice clients who successfully completed
treatment in the first 6 months of the latest 12 month period and re-
presented within 6 months compared to national average

To what extent have
these been achieved?

The most recent full Domes report for Plymouth is attached and a
narrative report from the Harbour Centre can be found within the
appendix.

Utilising DOMES for Q1 2017 - official statistics*

l. Proportion of the treatment population in contact with the
C]J system

Plymouth QI National average
% (n) %

Opiate 26 329/1265 21.6

Non opiate 18.3 15/82 I5

Alcohol 6.3 22/347 7

Alcohol and Non opiate 7 8/115 12.7

Comment we have a higher percentage of people in touch with the C)
system than other areas. This reflects both our levels of complexity and
the many years of partnership working in the city.

2. Successful completions as a proportion of C] clients of all in
treatment

Plymouth QI National average
% (n) %

Opiate 5.8 19/329 4.6

Non-opiate 20 3/15 388

Alcohol 22.7 5/22 41.1

Alcohol and non-opiate 50 4/8 353

Comment: Note the small numbers in all categories other than ‘opiate’
whereby very small changes in numbers can have large percentage effects.
The low numbers in these categories relate to patterns of referral from
C) agencies — opiate use is more criminogenic than other forms of drug
use and there is a clear relationship between treatment and crime
reduction, hence CJ agencies refer cases. For other drugs, eg alcohol, the

4|Page




Page 9 it PCC

H Office of the Police and
ff Crime Commissioner

g g Devon and Cornwall
:

«33322

relationship between treatment and reduced criminality is much less clear
and referrals tend to be lower.

3. Proportion of Cj clients who successfully completed in the
first 6 months in the latest 12 month period and represented
within 6 months

Plymouth QI National average
% (m) %

Opiate 0.0 0/8 14.9

Non-opiate 0.0 0/3 42

Alcohol 0.0 0/1 74

Alcohol and non-opiate 0.0 0/3 8.1

Comment: In normal circumstances lower percentages equate to better
performance in this domain, however, in this quarter our local numbers
are so small no meaningful conclusions can be drawn at this stage,
statistics are reported cumulatively so as the year progresses we should
have a better handle on our actual performance.

* Plymouth’s drug treatment cohort is of greater complexity than most
other areas and so comparisons with the national average do not give as
‘true’ a picture of our performance as would be derived from comparison
with our Local Outcome Comparators (LOC), however, these data are
derived from the nationally compiled DOMES report which doesn’t yet
include LOC data comparison.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes!?

The additional capacity for treatment made available by this funding
continues to be ‘flexible’ to the needs of the system including the
provider to ensure we are focusing our support on the current need and
pressures.

Rag Rating (‘/) as
appropriate

)

hieve
Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

On Track to A

(Project D)

Healthy Relationships

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of
funding

£43,500
Barnardo’s and NSPCC partnership — both registered charities

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

Approx. £14,300
As a commissioned service a full cost recovery is available on request

Intended Outcomes

See appendix for full service specification

5|Page




Page 10 Pcc

S Office of the Police and
Bt Crime Commissioner
, i Devon and Cornwall

How are these
measured?

As a commissioned service we carry out contract review meetings,
monitor performance against agreed outcomes and KPls contained within
the service specification.

A steering group will also provide oversight of performance.

To what extent have
these been achieved?

The contract was awarded on 4" August to the lead agency Barnardo’s.
Progress has been made with extensive research, scoping, participation
and consultation with young people. All is on track to receive the
preferred model for Plymouth young people and schools by January 18
including a timetable for delivery of pilot in schools between Jan — April
18.

The steering group has had its I** meeting with a follow up planned for
December.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes?

All currently on track.

Rag Rating (‘/) as
appropriate

D

n Track to Ahieve

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

(Project E)

Community Safety Awareness Raising

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of
funding

£36,000 — 65% of the total funding (£30,000 — via a commissioned service
and contract & £6,000 — PCC corporate communications and CSC for
design/branding/staff)

An additional £20,000 of Home Office funding has been successfully
applied for EVGE initiatives which will provide some match funding

It is also likely that there will be some ‘in kind' support as a specific
programme emerges.

The Harbour Centre will be leading this work

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

None to date — procured in October 2017 to be spent during the final 6
months

Intended Outcomes

See full service specification in the appendix

How are these
measured?

As a commissioned service the contract will be regularly monitored
against the agreed KPIs and outcomes within the service specification.

To what extent have
these been achieved?

Match funding has been achieved; contract issued to provider and kick off
meeting has been planned.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes?

All on track to achieve outcomes

Rag Rating (\/) as
appropriate

On Track to Ahieve

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

6|Page




5. PCC

«223328828232.

i i Office of the Police and
o288 H Y Crime Commissioner
2980808 *9
sioigisl :

Devon and Cornwall

(Project F) ASB, low level and emerging crime
Amount of funding £16,046
(£0,000s) Delivered by Community Connections at Plymouth City Council

If part funded please
indicate what % of funding

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

Total £1,330 to date:

£700 - rental of Four Greens Community Centre for delivery of
Recovery café.

£200 — contribution to Modern Slavery operations

£134 — ASB stationary

£45 — PSPO materials

£251.06 - ASB enforcement materials

Intended Outcomes

* Work in neighbourhoods where ASB is an issue

» Explore prevention methods to develop creative solutions for early

intervention and prevention of ASB

* Respond, and resource emerging issues

¢ Communities see a response to ASB

* Increased reporting of ASB

* Communities and citizens feel safe

* Reduce levels of ASB in the City

* Reduce number of ASB cases at stage | escalating to stage 2

How are these measured?

e Number of operations in City targeting reduction of ASB

e Number of early intervention solutions implemented across the

City
e Number of emerging issues identified and service response
implemented

e Customer feedback

e Number of Stage | ASB cases which do not progress to stage 2

as a result of the intervention

To what extent have
these been achieved?

Number of Operations in City targeting reduction of ASB:-
- Stonehouse PSPO consultation and subsequent implementation

from end of October 2017 targeting ASB associated with street
drinking, begging and fouling in the area. Enforcement of breaches
will be implemented via the ASB escalation process. Consultation
received 148 positive feedback submissions from the community

and all relevant signage is in place.

- Response to tombstoning and associated ASB on Plymouth Hoe.

5 x ASB stage 2 interventions.

- In October 2017 4 existing DPPOs across the City converted to

PSPOs in line with Crime and Policing Act 2014. Full review of
powers and enforcement via ASB escalation process
implemented. New signage in place across City.

7|Page




Pa_qe 12 i
sitgitsisis.. Pcc

Office of the Police and
5 Crime Commissioner
Devon and Cornwall

38!

e 502
o

- 7 Premises Closure orders undertaken successfully in this period
with premises secured as necessary. All have led to the
eradication of ASB from the addresses.

Early Intervention Solutions implemented:-
- Development of Recovery Café at Four Greens Community
Centre providing positive engagement and activity supporting
diversion from ASB/crime activity. |10 members engaged.

Emerging issues identified and service response implemented:-
- Modern Slavery — 6 operations undertaken, 4 as part of NCA
action weeks. | individual supported through NRM process
- Submissions data 1 April — 16™ October - 77 intel submissions
received this is an increase on the previous year

Reduce levels of ASB in the City
- 4% reduction in ASB across the City compared with 1* April —
31 September 2016

Reduce number of ASB cases at stage | escalating to stage 2
- Current percentage escalations from ASB stage | to ASB stage 2
is down 44% from 64% in 2016 to 20% in this reporting period.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes?

Community Connections work in close partnership with partner
agencies identifying/preventing/ and responding to ASB and emerging
issues.

This work supports Safer Pymouth Agenda across the delivery groups.
Enhanced joint working practices have been implemented between police
colleagues and Community Connections via a Neighbourhood Problem
Solving Group. This links with the police TIMS meetings and allows the
early detection of emerging neighbourhood issues and a the deployment
of early intervention/ prevention activity:-

e Arrise in ASB in the City Centre by a group of young people has
been targeted ( Operation Greywild) . Additional youth outreach
will be put in place as well as diversionary activities and ASB
escalation where appropriate. This will provide reassurance to
the public, a reduction in ASB activity and options for
perpetrators prior to escalation of ASB process.

e PSPO’s are under consideration for additional areas of the City
( Mutley and North Hill) to reduce the levels of ASB and
associated impact on communities, in particular linked with
alcohol harm reduction.

e Operation Dalitron raises awareness of CSE issues in areas
identified of being a particular risk to those vulnerable young
people. le. Funfair,circus grounds. A multi agency operation is
planned for December working with the communities in these

8|Page




Page 13 gt Pcc

HHEh Office of the Police and
HHH Crime Commissioner

Devon and Cornwall

N

g8

areas raising awareness via CSE training and the provision of
associated materials.

e Operation Plympton - outreach work is currently planned in
Plympton where an issue with young people perpetrating ASB in
the locality has been identified. Additional outreach youth work
provision and ASB escalation response will be put in place to
reduce the ASB and divert the young people into positive
activities. This will reduce ASB in the area and give the public
confidence to report issues.

e NCA Action weeks are supported by Community Connections
to identify victims of Modern Slavery in the City. ldentified victims
will be supported through the NRM process or in the City as
appropriate.

e [t is anticipated that there will be a full spend by the end of the
financial year

Rag Rating (\/ ) as

On Trak to Achieve :

appropriate
Not Achieved/Behind Schedule
(Project G) Prevent
Amount of funding £10,000
(£0,000s) Plymouth City council are commissioning

If part funded please
indicate what % of funding

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

None to date - planned spend this financial year

Intended Outcomes

The programme seeks to raise social and emotional competence and
increase empathy amongst children by incorporating themes of: British
values; celebrating and valuing local community; understanding different
beliefs and diversity and promoting Plymouth as a great place to live and
work.
The successful provider will commission a pilot and create an innovative
programme which will bring a new, exciting and fresh approach to
teaching this topic directly to schools.
It is expected that the programme will evidence:
» Demonstrable change in social and emotional competence and
increased empathy amongst children
* Positive changes have been achieved in children’s attitudes and
behaviours
= Children’s understanding of different beliefs and values has
improved

9|Page




Page 14 ..

. PGG

t Office of the Police and
t Crime Commissioner

»

Devon and Cornwall

38332

g T

* Increased perception of valuing and celebrating local community
" An greater understanding of British Values amongst children and
their community

How are these measured?

As a commissioned service the contract will be monitored (please see
appendix for full spec)
A steering group has been set up to provide governance and oversight

To what extent have
these been achieved?

Currently within a competitive procurement exercise. We expect a
positive outcome and contract award by the beginning of November.

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes!?

We will keep to timescale and commit to spending £8k on this project
by the end of the financial year. We've set up a steering group with the
Police and the Diverse Community Team to drive this forward and will
be reporting back to the Prevent lead on a regular basis. The lead will
then report back to Safer Plymouth and ONE Plymouth. We'll use the
evaluation criteria, Outcomes and Milestones and regularly evaluate the
programme as it moves thru its journey.

Rag Rating (‘/) as
appropriate

LUTCOIT

On Track to Achieve R

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

(Project H)

Safer Plymouth infrastructure and intelligence

Amount of funding
(£0,000s)

If part funded please
indicate what % of funding

£39,000

Breakdown of
expenditure

e.g. staffing/ one to one
referrals/materials/rent
etc

None. Planned spend to be commissioned this financial year

Intended Outcomes

To ensure key analysis is available for Safer Plymouth and its partners to
assist with evidence based decision making, develop business plans and
identify key activities. Support Safer Plymouth to develop a strong
infrastructure and connect with the system to enable the delivery of the
community safety outcomes within the Plymouth Plan.

We will be developing our commissioning of this work with key
stakeholders and this will include developing any relevant service
specification and will inform the outcomes and outputs. However, this is
likely to include delivery of a suite of products/sources being developed:
* Partnership plan

Needs assessments

Dashboards

Area profiles

Delivery Plans

10|Page




Page 15 ::f;:;‘ | Pcc

33 Office of the Police and
8 g Hi Crime Commissioner
; siiiEd Devon and Cornwall

* Partnership performance
A strong partnership will have confidence in its decision making that can
target the whole systems resources to the most appropriate response.

How are these measured?

To what extent have
these been achieved?

A number of conversations across the partnership have taken place to
identify and clarify full extent of need.

Benchmarking across the Peninsula including exploring opportunities for
collaboration e.g. commissioning Cornwall Amethyst team or utilising
role profile shared by Safer Devon for the recruitment of an analyst

Actions put in place to
achieve outcomes!

Rag Rating (\/) as
appropriate

"On Track to Achieve

Not Achieved/Behind Schedule

TO BE COMPLETED AND SIG

SIGNATURE: /&’//

NAME: MA T GARE.STT DATE 02 [u |13

TO BE SIGNED BY TREASURER / CFO

SIGNATURE:

NAME:

JOB TITLE:

DATE:

Electronic signatures are accepted. Please email to: pcccommissioning@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk

11| Page

JOB TITLE: Hetd of Coamrmun i (a/mecmw_s



Page 16 ff " Pcc

i Office of the Police and
o8 i ‘f 1 Crime Commissioner
, . Devon and Cornwall

APPENDIX A
Report For Harbours Criminal Justice Team
Exits

For all the tier 3 structured treatment episodes in CJIT 13% of exits were drug free treatment complete.
46% of exits were sent to prison. 34% dropped out. At a time when there is an increase in client deaths
only 2 exits were due to death. We should be able to improve our drug free treatment completes by
reframing the way that we work and not transferring clients to the community team when they have
finished their court order or exited from the prolific offender team.

Prison Releases

45% of referrals from the prison attended and commenced treatment with Harbour. Currently if all the
referrals engaged we would not have the capacity to see all of them with the current resources. We have
looked at different ways of working but the chaos, risk and unreliability of this group can block creative
ways of engaging. We mirror the chaos of the clients. We need to look again at improving the retention
rates for these prison referrals.

Referrals

Whilst referrals are low for DRRs this has been balanced by the reintroduction of ATRs and there has been
an increase in referrals for PPOs even though there has been a drop in the number of PPO’s on the
scheme. This means that for this part of the service we are delivering only 5 less commencements
compared to 2013/2014. Caseloads have increased as we are delivering the same with less staff.

Barriers

We are just beginning to see the effect of the selling off of the probation service. This is coupled with the
issues in the prison service with riots, lack of safety and the fact that they are full. The consequences of this
are that breaches due to non attendance and engagement are not being followed through quickly by
probation, where a breach is taken to court the order is revoked and clients are receiving fines or
conditional dischargers as there appears to be a reluctance to send people to prison and the feeling is that
this is due to overcrowding. Clients are becoming aware of this which is affecting our attendance levels as
there are no consequences to non attendance. Probation officers for IOM are no longer co located at Hyde
park House and have moved to St Catherine’s House which in time is likely to affect partnership working
and could affect client attendance.

Homelessness is a big problem for prison releases. This could be linked to the lack of engagement and high
drop out rates. However we have recognised some positive outcomes where PPOs have not gone into the
hostel system on release from prison where they have historically not coped with this communal living
arrangement and have been evicted. Instead they have been given a B+B by the city council, have managed
to sustain this arrangement for long enough to go straight to a move on property via BCHA.

Developments

Discussions are taking place to look at expanding the IOM to work with Domestic Abuse clients. Harbour
has already started delivering the Freedom Programme to explore different ways of delivering this service.

12|Page



Page 17 it
8 ::; $820e Pcc

g Office of the Police and
414 Crime Commissioner
o Devon and Cornwall

APPENDIX B
Service Specification -~ Healthy Relationships
|. Introduction

I.1 Safer Plymouth is the Community Safety Partnership for Plymouth. It sets the strategic direction for
partnership work between agencies in Plymouth. In 2016 it identified its priorities as Domestic Abuse and
Sexual Violence (DASV), Hate Crime, Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE), Modern Slavery, Cyber Crime
including Fraud and Prevent.

1.2 The Multi Agency Child Sexual Exploitation Group (MACSE) (sub group of the Safeguarding Children’s
Board) identified a need for quality assured earlier intervention and awareness work with children and
young people in relation to CSE.

1.3 The Plymouth Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership (sub group of Safer Plymouth)
identified the need for earlier intervention and awareness work with children and young people in relation
to Domestic Abuse via healthy relationships.

2. Purpose

2.1 Long term, we have an aspiration to ensure all children and young people in Plymouth have access to
information and support about healthy relationships reaching all ages and settings. This service begins to
advance this ambition.

2.2 The main purpose of the service is to develop a strategic approach to delivery of a ‘Healthy
Relationships Programme’ in schools as an effective way of ensuring children and young people have access
to information and skills to make informed decisions on the relationships they experience. It will ensure an
equitable offer to schools and provide quality assurance to the system.

2.3 The purpose of the service is to support achievement of the strategic outcomes as set out in the
Plymouth Plan; Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy and CYP Commissioning Strategy:

s Delivering strong and safe communities

* Improvement in health and wellbeing

*  People and communities feel safe

= Reducing harm

= Children are protected from sexual exploitation

3. Service Description and Key Activities

3.1 In the first instance, the service will provide the system with a comprehensive scoping work of need,
existing local and national best practice and resources available to the system. Identify gaps and
opportunities for work force development and direct delivery with children and young people.

3.2 The scope will conclude with recommendations on a future model of delivery that provides an equitable
offer to all schools (medium to long term), identifying how these can be met and how gaps can be
resourced. The conclusion will evidence how the strategic approach to healthy relationships will impact on
strategic objectives in the short and longer term including but not limited to the Safer Plymouth
performance indicators:

= % of new reports of DASV to increase;

» % of repeat incidents of domestic abuse;

= % of acute rapes of victims aged |16 years and above attending the Plymouth SARC;
3.3 There will also be a requirement to begin delivering a programme to schools within the academic year
2017/18. This short term activity should be targeted on areas of highest need and these areas will be agreed
with the commissioner.

13|Page



. PCC
A HI
i * Office of the Police and
8 Crime Commissioner
o Devon and Cornwall

3.4 The programme will increase awareness and understanding of what constitutes a healthy relationship;
will promote the concept of healthy, positive and respectful relationships and provide young people with
the skills to identify warning signs and make informed decisions on their relationships. It will build upon the
awareness developed within Relationship and Sex Education (RSE) and Personal, Social, Health and
Economic (PHSE) Education curriculums.

3.5 The programme will support emotional resilience for young people and will need to consider, but is not
restricted to;
= Positive and negative relationships — create a shared definition of ‘healthy relationship’
Identifying warning signs and symptoms of unhealthy relationships
How to stop and start relationship — what does healthy exiting look like?
Pressures and expectations
Coercive behaviour awareness
The meaning of consent within sexual relationships including understanding the difference between,
and separation of, sex and relationships
Risky behaviour and harmful sexual behaviour
Grooming
Safety on the internet and digital footprint
The reality gap — media representation and myth busting
Self-esteem and respect
Emotional intelligence
Communication skills
Attachment — improved resilience
»  Access for support and signposting
3.6 The programme will work with and utilise the participation of Young People (including young people
with protected characteristics) in service design, delivery, monitoring and continuous improvement. It will
be delivered in a manner which recognises youth culture; are non-judgemental, based on respect, empathy
and understanding of the issues Young People experience and as such will need to be designed and
developed in collaboration with young people.

3.7 The programme will be adaptable for delivery across the range of ages from early years to post 16
education settings and delivered using a range of mediums to increase engagement of pupils.

3.8 In relation to direct delivery, where service delivery takes place in school, the service provider will
work with each school’s Safeguarding Lead to identify and develop a point of contact for pupils to access
independent and specialist support for issues of domestic abuse and/or sexual violence (DASV).

3.9 The service will proactively develop and maintain effective partnership working with a range of partners,
including but not limited to, key staff in schools, school forums, the Police, other agencies and groups (such
as specialist DASV services both commissioned and delivered within the Community and Voluntary Sector)

3.10 Direct delivery offered will be at nil charge to schools and young people and will ensure all sessions
delivered to young people are in line with the PSHE Curriculum and where appropriate with other School
Curricula

3.1l The Programme will ensure opportunities for added value are maximised by joint working with the
Local Authority, CCG, schools, community, voluntary, independent and private providers. This will include
but not be limited to direct applications and supporting other agency applications for grant funding,
specifically to support participation activity to ensure the voice of CYP is embedded in the scope findings
and evaluation.

4. Networks and Links

4.1 The Service will work as part of a whole system of early help, prevention and targeted support for
young people and ensure direct delivery compliments existing services and interventions offered.

14jPage



Page 19 seif? Pcc

&
i Office of the Police and
(isassenes egoses Crime Commissioner
o Devon and Cornwall

4.2 The Services will make onward referrals as appropriate

4.3 The Services will report Safeguarding concerns and share appropriate information with the Young
Person’s school and other partners in line with Safeguarding policies

4.4 The Services will participate in appropriate operational and strategic group meetings to enable the
sharing of intelligence on need, outcomes and whole system delivery

5. Management Information

5.1 Performance information and review meetings will be agreed with the Commissioning Officer and the
Supplier’s representative

5.2 The Service maybe asked to provide information and intelligence to the Commissioning Officer as and
when required

5.3 The Services will have a process in place to access up to date information about changes in legislation
or policy affecting the Service area

6. Quality Requirements

6.1 The Service will be expected to take account of all the relevant national standards and guidance
published prior and during the contract period. This includes, but is not limited to:
= The Ofsted inspection framework for inspections conducted under section 5 of the Education Act
2005 (as amended) from September 2012
=  The National Curriculum
6.2 The Service staff and volunteers will be appropriately qualified to deliver specific elements of the
specification

6.3 The Service staff and volunteers will be DBS checked

6.4 The Service staff and volunteers will work within each individual schools Safeguarding Policy and will
appropriately challenge if concerns are held over how Safeguarding is handled

6.5 The Service will hold its hold safeguarding policy and maintain their own safeguarding records even
where the case has been escalated through the schools policy

7. Business Continuity

The Supplier will have in place a business continuity plan which will be made available to the Contract
Manager as per the Standard Terms and Conditions of the Contract

8. Performance

8.1 As previously stated, this programme will ultimately contribute to the long term outcomes of the city
to:

Delivering strong and safe communities

Improvement in health and wellbeing

People and communities feel safe

Reducing harm

Children are protected from sexual exploitation

8.2 In addition, this contract will contribute to ensuring improved findings from the personal relationships
section of the bi-annual school health related behaviour survey (see end of service specification for latest
findings)

The following targets have been set to measure the outcomes of this service:

15 |



e e PCC
R
it Office of the Police and
. i Crime Commissioner
, i Devon and Cornwall

Key Performance Indicators

' Written scope Business case N Report  To
commissioner
by jJan 2018

I

! !

; Number of sessions offered per = To be agreed Number of 'Written

; annum to school community and  once priorities sessions report by April

% take up set with offered 2018
' commissioner
%

'Delivery of direct Attendance

Ilnfter;entllons 12 me_mbers % of attendees who have had 90% Training Annual return

|° .sc'c.aoez codmmumté' f)as their learning outcomes met evaluation

[ROnseg anclagreed oy g on training (both within school forms

' Commissioner)

and held centrally)
I

Successfully engage with schools  100% Number of Annual return
within the priority for the schools
: delivery of the programme on an engaged
' annual basis
Added value secured to £ income and/or in kind £15,000 Finances On-going
gdevelop programme provision, directly generated

|delivery for participation of 'grants or supported
CYP in scope development

Outcomes

| Young People have increased 90% of  Stakeholder Annual Return
‘ awareness and report they can: (to  attendees/ feedback

be finalised with commissioner) young people
|
' = Contextualize their own and Plymouth
' School community others relationships Schools Health
'will have improved ™ Differentiate between positive Relatgd
awareness of and negative relationships Behaviour
' healthy including identifying signs and Survey
relationships symptoms

® Understand how perpetrators
groom young victims of DASV
and CSE

* Understand and be able to

identify pressures and

expectations and to make

16 |



' Young people will

| have improved (ma

\personal resources other way):
including resilience,
confidence and

| self-esteem

|Increased timely
access to early
lintervention and

' specialist support
as appropriately

required

U
Q
(@]
(0]
N
—

£

133

0228382823882

.:’::

informed decisions that prioritise
their needs and are respectful to
themselves and others
Understand the meaning of
consent within sexual
relationships and understand the
law including consequences of
non-consensual sex

Understand the impact on self
and own heaith if engaging in
risky or harmful sexual behaviour
Interact and navigate safely online

Numbers of young people 90% of

le:female:describe myself in some attendees/
young people

with improved understanding of
a healthy relationship

who know how to seek help or
advice if they are in an unhealthy
relationship

who would seek help or advice if
they are in an unhealthy
relationship

Number of young people Self- TBC
reported increase (priority group to
be agreed with Commissioner)

5 PGG

Office of the Police and

Crime Commissioner
Devon and Cornwall

Young people
feedback — of
those receiving
intervention

Citywide
system data on
referrals and
disclosures
received: PDAS

SARC

APPENDIX C AWARENESS RAISING FOR COMMUNITY SAFETY

I. Introduction

Annual Return

Plymouth

Schools Health |

Related
Behaviour
Survey

Annual Return

.1 Safer Plymouth is the brand name for the statutory Community Safety Partnership for Plymouth. It is
made up of representatives from the ‘responsible authorities’, which are:

police
local authorities

fire and rescue authorities
probation service

health

It sets the strategic direction for partnership work between agencies in Plymouth. In 2016 it identified its
priorities as Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, Hate Crime, Child Sexual Exploitation, Modern Slavery,
Cyber Crime including Fraud and Prevent.

17 |



o
Q
Q
o
N
N

« PGG

Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner
Devon and Cornwall

321

esassscss0ess

1.2 There are subgroups or theme leads aligned to these priorities and a common objective throughout has
been the need to ensure key themes are kept high profile in Plymouth with the public and professionals. In
particular, for those emerging areas of crime.

2. Purpose

2.1 The main purpose of the service is to develop a strategic approach to way in which Safer Plymouth and
its partners raise awareness of key priorities and communicate with the public and other professionals.

2.2 The service will work with and support Safer Plymouth and its partners to ensure priority themes are
kept high profile in Plymouth with the public and professionals via campaigns, awareness raising events and
training.

2.3 The service will support achievement of the strategic outcomes as set out in the Plymouth Plan;
Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy and Children and Young People Commissioning Strategy:

= Delivering strong and safe communities

* |mprovement in health and wellbeing

® People and communities feel safe

= Reducing harm

= Children are protected from sexual exploitation
2.4 It aims to impact on strategic objectives including, but not limited to, the Safer Plymouth performance
framework, example indicators:

* Number of Modern Slavery Referrals to the National Referral Mechanism

* Number of hate crime incidents reported via the Police and Local Authority

= Number of referrals to the Channel Panel
3. Service Description and Key activities

3.1 To work with Safer Plymouth to develop a coordinated 12 month plan of activity to include priority
themes as directed by the Board and commissioners. It will require a flexible response depending on the
need, profile and partnership engagement and this will be advised by theme leads.

3.2 To lead the co-ordination of relevant events as determined by Safer Plymouth which may be delivered
by other partners

3.3 To organise and deliver relevant events as determined by Safer Plymouth partners e.g. a Prevent
conference

3.4 Many local and national organisations and partners are all working to address community safety issues
including with high profile national and local campaigns. Where appropriate, link into national campaigns to
ensure best use of existing resources to deliver and provide consistent messaging.

3.5 As a minimum, to create and deliver in partnership with existing partners and mechanisms:
* A i2 month programme, incorporating direct delivery of:
o 2 conferences — for 2017 Prevent and one other in collaboration with the commissioner and
Safer Plymouth
o | Week of Action
o 3 campaigns — to be informed by commissioner and Safer Plymouth in collaboration with
Plymouth City Council corporate communications team
4. Governance and Networks

4.1 The Service will work as part of the Safer Plymouth partnership utilising a whole system approach to
ensure direct delivery compliments existing services and interventions offered

18| Page



A coordinated plan of 12 month plan il To
| activity commissioner
by mid -
December
2017
Direct delivery of: Number of sessions offered  To be agreed Number of  Written
and % take up with sessions report after
= 2 conferences —for commissioner  offered each activity
2017 Prevent and one and theme followed by an
other in collaboration leads % annual return
with the commissioner Attendance by April 2018
and Safer Plymouth 90% take up

Page 23 Y Pcc

sevesesse

it Office of the Police and
TR Crime Commissioner
o ’ Devon and Cornwall

4.2 The Service will participate in appropriate operational and strategic group meetings to enable the
sharing of intelligence on need, outcomes and whole system delivery. In particular, the service will ensure
appropriate read across to the Safeguarding Boards

4.3 The Service will report Safeguarding concerns and share appropriate information with partners in line
with Safeguarding policies

5. Management Information and Quality Requirements

5.1 Performance information and review meetings will be agreed with the Commissioning Officer and the
Supplier's representative

5.2 The Service maybe asked to provide information and intelligence to the Commissioning Officer as and
when required

5.3 The Service will have a process in place to access up to date information about changes in legislation or
policy affecting the Service area

5.4 The Service will hold its own safeguarding policy and maintain their own safeguarding records even
where cases have been escalated

5.5 The Service staff and volunteers will be appropriately qualified to deliver specific elements of the
specification

6. Performance

6.1 As previously stated, this service will ultimately contribute to the long term outcomes of the city to:

= Delivering strong and safe communities

= Improvement in health and wellbeing

= People and communities feel safe

»  Reducing harm

=  Children are protected from sexual exploitation
6.2 Each campaign, training or other activity will provide an opportunity to measure impact and an
evaluation will be requested. The following targets have been set to measure the outcomes of this service:

Key Performance Indicators

19|Page



Page 24 .. Pcc

Office of the Police and
5 Crime Commissioner
Devon and Cornwaill

4
L1
oo

|' | Week of Action % of attendees who have had | 90% ~ Evaluation  As above
. their learning outcomes met forms
'= 3 campaigns - to be
| informed by numbers successfully engage  100% Attendance  As above
| commissioner and Safer with/reached at events and/or figures,
. Plymouth in website hits/retweets website or
. collaboration with social media
Plymouth City Council data

corporate comms team

Outcomes

'Plymouth citizens ' Report they have increased 90% of Stakeholder ~ Written report |
will have improved awareness attendees feedback after each
‘awareness of activity
|community safety followed by an |
|issyes/priorities Increased uptake of services 5% increase Citywide aooual eI |
: by April 2018 |
services
!
'People will have Numbers of people reporting: 90% of feedback — of  Written report
{improved ) 1 attendees/ those receiving after each
confidence to |mprovec.i underst'e.mdlng of people intervention activity
report, community safety issue followed by an
| ret
whc? know how to seek help or E;n::r;ezg :g
advice
|
who would seek help or advice if
they required '
| Professionals will  Increases in understanding of issues !
have increased among participants after receiving ‘
|knowledge awareness training .
|
|

Increased confidence and ability of
people to address discrimination

Increased timely Number of people Self-reported 5% increase Citywide Written report |
access to early increase (priority groups to be system data on after each |
intervention and  agreed with Commissioner) referrals and activity ,
specialist support disclosures followed by an |
as appropriately received: EG  annual return
required National by April 2018

Referral

mechanism; |

PDAS; SARC;

Schools;

20 |



Page 25 PCC

i Office of the Police and
i Crime Commissioner
, g Devon and Cornwall

APPENDIX D PREVENT AND WELCOMING CITY

Service Specification — Schools Based Empathy Pilot

I. Introduction

If Plymouth is to fulfil its city vision of a ‘vibrant waterfront city where an outstanding quality of life is
enjoyed by everyone’ we must continue to build our reputation as a welcoming, multicultural city
where agencies and communities work together to promote the benefits of diversity and challenge
unfair discrimination.
We aspire to be a fair city that supports strong and inclusive communities - where people have a sense
of belonging and ownership, feel safe and confident, with the opportunity to live, work and play in
good quality sustainable neighbourhoods.
We must work together to ensure that the needs of different communities of geography, identity and
interest are respected, celebrated, and valued.

2. Invitation to quote

Plymouth City Council is seeking to commission a provider to create, deliver and evaluate a School
Based Empathy Pilot Programme in selected Plymouth primary schools. With an initial budget in the
region of £10,000, the successful provider will: engage with relevant schools; develop an appropriate
programme; run a pilot programme in a number of Plymouth schools and report back to the
Commissioning manager their findings including an assessment of potential future take-up and options
for sustainable delivery of this project.
The pilot programme is expected to be delivered to a minimum of 4 Primary schools and run between
January and June 2018. Evaluation and key findings report to be concluded by july 2018.

3. Purpose of the Programme
This programme will contribute to achieving the aims of the Plymouth Plan and the outcomes of the
Safer Plan commissioning plan

I The Plymouth Plan - The City will support strong and inclusive communities where people have a sense of
belonging and ownership, feel safe and confident, with the opportunity to live, work and play in good quality
sustainable neighbourhoods.

O Safer Plymouth - Plymouth is proud to be a welcoming city and continues to monitor levels of community
cohesion.
The programme seeks to raise social and emotional competence and increase empathy amongst
children by incorporating themes of: British values; celebrating and valuing local community;
understanding different beliefs and diversity and promoting Plymouth as a great place to live and work.
The successful provider will commission a pilot and create an innovative programme which will bring a
new, exciting and fresh approach to teaching this topic directly to schools. The School Based Empathy
Programme is expected to:

[J Add value to the existing good practice already being rolled out through personal, social, health and
economic education provision in schools with a focus on empathy, social and emotional competence

[0 Enhance the opportunity to incorporate OFSTED requirements specifically in relation to key
judgement area “personal development, behaviour and welfare” so schools scores can benefit

4. Outcomes of the Programme
It is expected that the programme will evidence:
[0 Demonstrable change in social and emotional competence and increased empathy amongst children

[] Positive changes have been achieved in children’s attitudes and behaviours

OJ Children’s understanding of different beliefs and values has improved

O] Increased perception of valuing and celebrating local community

] An greater understanding of British Values amongst children and their community

5. The successful provider will be able to demonstrate:

21| Page



e
23
21

Page 26

= PCC
gttt
S Office of the Police and
it i .' Crime Commissioner
B :

Devon and Cornwall

egessse
s0009:

EH
0 Experience of delivering similar activities with a strong process for building relationships with
schools

[J That the proposal meets the purpose of the project and is pedagogy based

0] Does not duplicate current school curriculum

] Has a clear evaluation framework

L Evidences links to the local community and associated impact

6. Timetable

Activity Deadline Date Deliverables
Distribute request for quotation  11th September 2017 All interested parties identified
(RFQ)
Responses to request for 6th October 2017 All interested parties responded
quotation (RFQ)
Assessment of RFQ’s 13th October 2017 Manager + evaluation criteria
Appointment of successful I 3th October 2017 Manager
provider
Successfully provider starts |6th October 2017 Successful provider formalised
agreement
Pilot programme delivery January 2018 Successful provider Pilot outlined
commences Schools selected
Evaluation criteria in place
Pilot programme finishes June 2018 Successful provider
Pilot evaluation submitted July 2018 Successful provider
Pilot evaluation assessed by PCC ~ August 2018 Manager

22| Page



Safer Plymouth Delivery Plan

Theme:
A community where people feel safe and secure
Context
o
Q
(o]
Overall Aim @
N
~
Key Outcomes
P
Q0
D
=
(o}
Q
—
D
3
Key Commissioning &)
themes




.9

SAFER

PLYMOUTH

A community where people feel safe and se

Planned Activity

April

May

June

July

Aug

Sept

8¢ 9bed




.9

SAFER

PLYMOUTH

A community where people feel safe and secure

Planned Activity

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

6¢ 9bed




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31 Agenda Item 7
Restricted

Welfare Checks

This guidance sets out Devon & Cornwall
Police Policy in relation to requests by external
agencies to conduct Welfare Checks on adults
and children.

Purpose

This guidance is written to clarify Devon & Cornwall Police policy in relation to requests by
external agencies to carry out ‘Welfare Checks’ on vulnerable adults and children. This
document is intended to provide Officers with an overview of when Welfare Checks should
be undertaken and does not include an exhaustive list of Police powers of entry. Officers
should therefore familiarise themselves with the relevant provisions of PACE and the Codes
of Practice.

Policy

Devon & Cornwall Police will respond to requests for assistance from external agencies to
conduct Welfare Checks on adults at risk and children where the following criteria are met:

o There is an identifiable and immediate risk to life or property.

o The adult at risk or child is suffering or are at risk of suffering
immediate and significant harm.

o It is reasonably believed that a crime has been committed or is
about to be committed.

. Attendance of a Police Officer is necessary to prevent a Breach of
the Peace.

Devon & Cornwall Police will not accept responsibility for carrying out checks where an
agency makes a request which does not meet any of the above criteria.

Background

Police, Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable of Devon & Cornwall Police are
committed to protecting vulnerable people in our communities and this is clearly set out in
the Police and Crime Plan. Devon & Cornwall Police is specifically committed to the
continued development of effective partnership working arrangements with both statutory
and non-statutory partners.

Version 1.2 — November 2015



Page 32

Restricted

Analysis of Police incident logs has identified that requests by external agencies to conduct
‘Welfare Checks’ have been steadily increasing and that some of these requests are not
appropriate for Police Officers to deal with.

Devon & Cornwall Police Officers and staff have specific duties and responsibilities to carry
out in protecting the public and the purpose of this policy is to ensure that Police resources
are utilised to best effect and in accordance with these duties and responsibilities.

The Statement of Common Purpose and Values for the Police Service sets out that;

“The purpose of the Police service is to uphold the law fairly and firmly; to prevent crime; to
pursue and bring to justice those who break the law; and to keep the Queen's Peace; to
protect, help and reassure the community; and to be seen to do all this with integrity,
common sense and sound judgement”.

The law provides Constables with certain powers to enable them to fulfil their duties, e.g.
power of entry to premises, but it is important to note that there is no general duty to ensure
the welfare of citizens and that Police Officers are accountable for their decisions in utilising
these powers. This is described in more detail below.

It is also the case that the presence of a uniformed Police Officer can have a significant

negative impact on vulnerable individuals and therefore the deployment of Officers needs to
be necessary and proportionate in the circumstances.

Legal Considerations

Police have a range of powers deriving from statute that enable us to carry out their duties.
Where there is no specific legislative power, courts will often imply a power that
corresponds to the core duties, to enable Police Officers to lawfully fulfil that duty.
However, powers do not extend simply to facilitate Officers acting in excess of those core
duties.

Police have a positive duty to protect life under article 2 of the European Convention of
Human Rights, incorporated into UK law by the Human Rights Act 1998. This obligation
arises where Police know, or ought to know, about a real risk to life. In situations where a
‘Welfare Check’ is carried out by Police and there is an identified risk to life, Officers may
seek to rely upon Section 17 of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984, which provides
that:

“1) Subject to the following provisions of this section....a constable
may enter and search any premises for the purpose-

(e) Of saving life or limb or preventing serious damage to property.”

In this particular scenario, S17 (1) (e) enables an Officer to carry out their core duty to
protect life and property.

In the case of Syed v DPP [2010] the High Court ruled that this provision did not justify

entry where there was a general concern for the welfare of someone within the premises

-0
Version 1.2 — November 2015



Page 33

Restricted

and therefore Officers were not acting in the execution of their duty when purporting to rely
on s17 to force entry against the wishes of the person who answered the door.

Mr Justice Collins said:

“It is plain that Parliament intended that the right of entry without
any warrant should be limited to cases where there was an
apprehension that something serious was otherwise likely to occur,
or perhaps had occurred, within the house....Concern for welfare is
not sufficient to justify an entry within the terms of section 17(1) (e).
It is altogether too low a test.

| appreciate and have some sympathy with the problems that face
Officers in a situation such as was faced by these Officers. In a
sense they are damned if they do and damned if they do not,
because if in fact something serious had happened, or was about to
happen, and they did not do anything about it because they took the
view that they had no right of entry, no doubt there would have
been a degree of ex post facto criticism. But it is important to bear
in mind that Parliament set the threshold at the height indicated by
section 17(1)(e) because it is a serious matter for a citizen to have
his house entered against his will and by force by Police Officers.”

A Breach of the Peace is defined as the behaviour of a person that causes a person to
believe that (1) a breach of the peace had or would occur and that (2) it related to harm
which was actually done or likely to be done to a person or, in his/her presence, their
property (R v Howell [1982]).

In recent years, forces across the country have had numerous cases where exactly this
type of post event examination has been carried out during inquest proceedings. Some
cases have led to rule 43 recommendations/Regulation 28 reports by coroners.

Essentially, Welfare Checks should not encroach on an individual’s right to privacy.

Procedural Guidance

Devon & Cornwall Police will accept responsibility for carrying out checks on the welfare of
vulnerable people where any of the criteria set out in this policy are met.

When requests are made for Welfare Checks, the exact nature of the immediate threat,
risks and potential harm relating to the vulnerable person must be established.

Police will carry out a ‘Welfare Check’ when a request is made to Police about an individual,
if it is an emergency situation, where there is a real concern or a degree of apprehension of
some serious injury/loss of life without immediate Police intervention, or serious damage is
being done or is immediately threatened to property.

The Police will respond because it enables a professional intervention if an individual is in
need of immediate assistance due to a health condition, injury or some other life
threatening situation. Unless this threshold is reached, Police have no duty, and therefore

-3-
Version 1.2 — November 2015



Page 34

Restricted

no additional power, to take any action once outside the premises. Officers are reminded
that S17 PACE does not provide Officers conducting emergency Welfare Checks where it is
reasonably believed that a crime has occurred or is about to or where it is necessary to
prevent a breach of the peace as per criteria 2 and 3 of the above Policy (The adult at risk
or child is suffering or at risk of suffering immediate and significant harm; or, it is reasonably
believed that a crime has been committed or about to be committed) with an automatic right
of entry to the premises.

(Note:- Officers considering their power under S17 PACE must ensure that they gather as
much information as possible in support of their grounds and record the same as soon as
reasonably practicable following the event. This might include speaking with occupants,
neighbors or collating any other information/intelligence to support an honestly held belief
that entry without warrant is necessary. There will of course be circumstances when the
Officer will not consider this to be appropriate due to the emergency nature of the situation.
In these circumstances, the Officer should ensure their report contains details of their
reasoning for immediate entry).

Non emergency Welfare Checks

In the event that the threshold for Police attendance is not satisfied, the concern (and the
resolution of that concern), will remain that of the requesting agency.

It may occasionally be considered appropriate for Police to accompany another agency to
conduct such a check, but this will need to be assessed on a case by case basis and it is
for the requesting agency to provide the relevant information/intelligence to support the
need for the presence of the Police. If the requesting agency cannot provide and evidence
good reason, Police will not attend. The responsibility for dealing with the matter will
remain that of the requesting agency.

If a ‘Welfare Check’ is carried out by Police, the Officer/s carrying out the check must
update the relevant agency and comply with ViST policy.

If however another Police Force request Police attendance, Police will attend. The

attending Officer/s should satisfy themselves that the threshold for entry is met even when
the request for attendance originates from another Police force.

Escalation Policy

In the event of a disagreement between the requesting agency and Police, the matter
should be referred to the Force Incident Manager (FIM) who will be responsible for
determining whether Police resources are deployed.

Version 1.2 — November 2015



Page 35
HEALTHY RELATIONSHIPS BRIEFING

Integrated Commissioning

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

The purpose of this briefing is to inform key stakeholders of the commissioning and procurement of a
healthy relationships programme

Background

A commissioning plan was developed for Safer Plymouth, the Community Safety Partnership for
Plymouth, directed by Strategic Crime Assessment and priority area leads. It identified a number of
priorities including Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV) and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).

The Plymouth Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership (sub group of Safer Plymouth)
identified the need for earlier intervention and awareness work with children and young people in
relation to Domestic Abuse via healthy relationships. The Multi Agency Child Sexual Exploitation
Group (MACSE) (sub group of the Safeguarding Children’s Board) identified a need for quality assured
earlier intervention and awareness work with children and young people in relation to CSE.

A steering group has developed made up of school representatives, PCC commissioning, Public
Health, Learning and Communities, Safer Plymouth, and Provider representatives. It met in February
and April 2017 to agree the scope along with expected outcomes, outputs and key performance
indicators.

Service Purpose

Long term, we have an aspiration to ensure all children and young people in Plymouth have access to
information and support about healthy relationships reaching all ages and settings. This service begins
to advance this ambition.

The main purpose of the service is to develop a strategic approach to delivery of a ‘Healthy
Relationships Programme’ in schools as an effective way of ensuring children and young people have
access to information and skills to make informed decisions on the relationships they experience. It
will ensure an equitable offer to schools and provide quality assurance to the system. It will support
achievement of the strategic outcomes as set out in the Plymouth Plan; Wellbeing Commissioning
Strategy and CYP Commissioning Strategy.

This work will deliver a pilot programme in some schools within the forthcoming academic year.
Funding

The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) has agreed to fund this programme via its
CSP grant to local authorities.

In addition, a ‘pitch to funders’ event has resulted in 3 grant funders expressing an interest in receiving
full applications for funding. The successful provider will follow up.

Procurement activity

A procurement process has been completed. Due to the value of the contract (01/08/17-31/03/18
£43,000; option to extend for | year dependent on funding being approved £30,000) a Technical
Request for Quotation (RFQ) was the preferred procurement process in accordance with Contract
Standing Orders Clause 17.2.

The RFQ was placed on the supplying the south west portal open to the market. This followed two
stakeholder engagement meetings in February and April 2017 and all members of this group were
informed.

5 quotes were received and these were evaluated and then moderated by PCC Commissioners,
police and school representatives. As a result, Plymouth City Council has awarded the contract for
this work to a partnership of Barnardo’s and NSPCC.

Version and date OFFICIAL or OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 36 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Next Steps

Between August and January 2017 scoping and systems work will be undertaken to understand
Plymouth need and response.

Post January 2018 we will begin to see direct delivery. A pilot will be developed, delivered and
evaluated.

Over the coming weeks:

= Barnardo’s and NSPCC will provide wider communications including press release

* [nitiate engagement with Children and Young People from start — priority to start early so that
service is not just informed by but shaped and where appropriate designed by them

= Steering group meeting will be invited to reconvene mid-September

HEALTHY RELATIONSHIPS BRIEFING Page 2 of 2
OFFICIAL or OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE



Page 37
Devon & Cornwall Police

Building safer communities together

Mr Phil Norrey Shaun Sawyer
Chief Executive Officer Chief Constable
Devon County Council Police Headquarters
County Hall Middlemoor
Topsham Road Exeter
Exeter Devon
Devon EX2 7THQ
EX2 4QD

Telephone: 101
4 January 2016

e o TN

Police attendance for Welfare Checks on behalf of External Agencies

We are continually reviewing our business to ensure that we work effectively and
efficiently; focussing our resources on known risk, harm, threat and vulnerability,
protecting people from harm, reducing crime and bringing offenders to justice.

Having conducted a review of requests by external agencies for the Police to
conduct Welfare Checks on their behalf, our evidence supports the national picture
that in the majority of these requests the Police were not the appropriate initial
responder. This has created an unsustainable and unnecessary demand on the
Force. We are seeking to be more robust in our identification of risk and vulnerability
at the earliest stage to ensure that individuals receive a proportionate level of
response from the most appropriate agency and request your continued support in

achieving this.

In the absence of well evidenced and detailed concerns by the requesting agency
identifying an immediate risk to life, the Police are likely to have no role in such
requests. The mere presence of the police can have a negative impact for those who
are living with mental ill health or recovering from a crisis, especially when there is
no policing reason for our involvement.

As of March 2016 we intend to make significant changes to how we respond to your
requests. Devon and Cornwall Police will only respond to requests for assistance
from external agencies to conduct ‘welfare checks’ on adults at risk and children

where the following criteria are met:

=

EXCELLENCE

B8

7 CUSTOMER
SERVICE

Goyernment Standard

[101 ® www.devon-cornwall.police.uk

SFB15




Page 38

o There is an identifiable and immediate risk to life or property.

e The adult at risk or child is suffering or are at risk of suffering
immediate and significant harm.

o |tis reasonably believed that a crime has been committed or is about

to be committed.
e Attendance of a Police officer is necessary to prevent a breach of the

peace.

Itis intended that Devon and Cornwall Police will no longer accept responsibility for
carrying out checks where an agency makes a request which does not meet any of
the above criteria. Our new working practice is attached (appendix A) and provides
more detailed advice and guidance for your information.

Your staff may wish to make contact with us and should you have any concerns or
wish to discuss this change further please do not hesitate to contact Inspector Paul
Searle on 01392 224032 or email paul.searle@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk

Following any discussion you may wish to amend your working practices to reflect
the changes to our service delivery and advise any contracted agencies that
discharge this duty on your behalf. This will ensure that we are only notified of those
circumstances where the policing need outlined above is identified. We would ask
that you inform us, at the time of the report, of steps you have taken to mitigate any
risk. If it is identified that a policing response is necessary and proportionate any risk
assessments should be shared with us when available.

It must be stressed that the above change to our working practice will in no way alter
our response to any incident which arises dynamically or during which your staff

request urgent Police assistance where they are unable to prevent harm to
themselves or others.

'\/\ )
S s S NN C&J‘—e\Y
- O~ &31\/\ p\“-.__k._,__)

Shaun Sawyer




Concern for Welfare Calis — 3™ Party Agencies

Devon and Cornwall Police will respond to requests for assistance from external agencies to conduct
welfare checks on vulnerable adults and children where the following criteria apply:

= There is an identifiable and immediate risk to life or property.

= The adult at risk or child is suffering, or is at risk of suffering, immediate and significant harm.
= |tis reasonably believed that a crime has been committed or is about to be committed.

= Attendance of a Police Officer is necessary to prevent a Breach of the Peace.

The Force will not carry out checks where an agency makes a request which does not meet any
of the criteria as above.

Create a STORM incident.

Call comes from External Agency Consider call to SWASFT
asking for Police to check on a

Service User l
l Police to provide
proportionate response
Is Service User or another person in
Immediate danger, or do the

circumstances meet the above

criteria?

Consider Misper/Absent
Policy if circumstances

[ | :
ictate

\ 4

Has a representative from your
agency attended the address and
exhausted enquiries?

(Hospital and NOK enq’s, places
frequented checked etc)

Advise Caller to call SWASFT and
discuss, asking them to attend. We

A 4

Lo |

will go with Amb if risk demands

Is there concern for their physical l
health?

If caller declines to call SWASFT or health

m professional, explain the criteria and that the
presence and support of those in the health

service who are appropriately trained to carry
Is there concern for their mental

health?

out this role is a requirement.

'

m In the absence of immediate risk,
confirm arrangements for Multi-Agency

Signpost caller to local Approved
Mental Health Practitioner (AMHP)

visit have been made.

vy

POLICE NOT TO ATTEND




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last Meeting
	3 6 monthly budget update
	5 Delivery Plan Template
	7 Healthy Relationships update
	B20170809 Healthy Relationships update
	NORREY Phil

	8 Concern for Welfare Process

